NORTH DAKOTA STATE BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS GRAFTON, NORTH DAKOTA

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pa	ige
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	3
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statements of Net Position	6
Statements of Activities	7
Balance Sheets - Governmental Funds	8
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheets to the Statements of Net Position	9
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	10
Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statements of Activities	11
Notes to the Financial Statements	12
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Budgetary Comparison Schedules - General Fund	19
Note to the Required Supplementary Information	21
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	22
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES	24

BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors

North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners

Grafton, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in financial position for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepting in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provided any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated August 19, 2019 on our consideration of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. GRAND FORKS, NORTH DAKOTA

August 19, 2019

Forady Martz

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

This discussion report is offered as an accompaniment to the audited financial statements of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners. It includes a narrative overview of the Board and its financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The Board is a regulatory agency of the State of North Dakota. Its activities consist of the initial licensing of chiropractors and certified chiropractic clinical assistants, annual license renewal, monitoring chiropractors' continuing education, and responding to occasional consumer concerns about the performance of a chiropractor. The Board has a staff of one, which consists of the executive director. The Board owns no real property, and maintains its financial assets in cash or cash equivalents, other than office equipment and costs for their online license management system.

The national and state economic climates have little direct effect on the Board's financial operations. The Board does not seek grants, loans, or other financial consideration from any governmental unit or other entity. Its main revenues consist of licensing and application fees, late fees, and disciplinary fees. No funding is received from the general revenues of the State, nor are funds transferred to the State.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net position increased over the two year period from \$317,533 to \$414,081 as of December 31, 2018.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion serves as an introduction to the Board's four basic financial statements, which consist of: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Statement of Activities, 3) Governmental Funds Balance Sheet, and 4) Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents the total of all the Board's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as an indicator of whether or not the financial position of the Board is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents a view of how the Board's net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the related event occurs, regardless of the timing or related cash flow. As a result, revenues and expenses could be reported for items that will not result in cash flows until future periods.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Board's governmental funds consist only of the general fund.

Notes to financial statements. The Notes to the financial statements provide additional information which the reader may find useful in understanding the Board's financial statements.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) – CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Board's assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Capital assets owned by the Board consists of computers, office furnishings and an online license management system.

The Board has no short or long-term debt or receivables. The Board has no material liabilities other than short term payroll-related obligations. Changes in financial position are the result of general operations and depreciation.

Net Position for the period ended December 31

	2018	2017	2016
Assets			
Current	\$ 362,223	\$ 302,633	\$ 274,544
Capital assets-net of accumulated depreciation	54,399	60,034	45,403
Total assets	416,622	362,667	319,947
Liabilities			
Current	2,541	2,591	2,414
Net position			
Net investment in capital assets	54,399	60,034	45,403
Unrestricted	359,682	300,042	272,130
Total net position	\$ 414,081	\$ 360,076	\$ 317,533

Statement of Activities for the years ended December 31

	2018	2017	2016
Program expenses	\$ (97,243)	\$ (111,739)	\$ (89,179)
Program revenues	150,975	154,141	143,650
Net program revenue	53,732	42,402	54,471
General revenues	273	141	56
Change in net position	54,005	42,543	54,527
Net Position - Beginning	360,076	317,533	263,005
Net Position - Ending	\$ 414,081	\$ 360,076	\$ 317,532

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) – CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets – The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounts to \$54,399 and \$60,034 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. This investment in capital assets includes equipment and intangible assets for software and the website.

	2018	2017	2016
Furniture, Computers and Database	\$ 71,182	\$ 71,182	\$ 52,939
Accumulated Depreciation	(16,783)	(11,148)	(7,536)
Net Capital Assets	\$ 54,399	\$ 60,034	\$ 45,403

Additional information on the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Board's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Executive Director, Lisa Blanchard, by telephone (701-213-0476), or by mail: NDSBCE, PO Box 185, Grafton, ND 58237.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

	Governmental Activities					
		2018		2017		
ASSETS Cash Prepaid expenses	\$	360,807 1,416	\$	301,413 1,220		
Capital assets: Fixed assets Less: accumulated depreciation		71,182 (16,783)		71,182 (11,148)		
Total Assets		416,622		362,667		
<u>LIABILITIES</u> Payroll Tax Liabilities		2,541		2,591		
Total Liabilities		2,541		2,591		
NET POSITION Net investment in capital assets Unrestricted		54,399 359,682		60,034 300,042		
Total Net Position	\$	414,081	\$	360,076		

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

	Governmental Activities				
		2018	VILICO	2017	
Program Expenses:					
Attorney General	\$	10,332	\$	10,792	
Audit	·	, -	·	2,500	
Conference Calls		435		565	
Copy Machine Contract		909		850	
Credit Card Fees		2,978		-	
Dues		1,247		1,070	
Insurance		1,144		1,144	
Investigations		[′] 19		, -	
Law/Rule Changes		-		284	
License Refund		_		600	
Meeting Expenses		406		879	
Miscellaneous Expenses		3		37	
National Meeting Expenses		7,371		10,001	
Office Equipment Expense		987		814	
Office Supplies		1,532		3,369	
Payroll Tax		2,887		2,949	
Peer Review		2,981		11,668	
Per Diem		9,750		13,500	
Salary		35,796		33,415	
Special Meeting Expenses		2,246		2,846	
State Meeting Expenses		5,602		5,607	
Telephone		1,555		1,612	
Website Fees		3,178		3,375	
Workman's Compensation		250		250	
Depreciation		5,635		3,612	
Depreciation					
Total Program Expenses		97,243		111,739	
Program Revenues:					
License Renewals		133,800		132,791	
Examination Fees		7,225		9,000	
CCCA Application Fees		2,700		4,450	
Disciplinary		5,250		6,000	
Membership Lists & Labels		2,000		1,900	
Total Program Revenues		150,975		154,141	
Not Payanuas and Changes in Not Position		E2 722		42 402	
Net Revenues and Changes in Net Position		53,732		42,402	
General Revenues/(Expenses):					
Interest Income		259		76	
Miscellaneous		14		65	
Total General Revenues		273		141	
Change in Net Position		54,005		42,543	
Net Position-Beginning		360,076		317,533	
Net Position-Ending	\$	414,081	\$	360,076	
•			<u> </u>		

See Notes to the Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEETS – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

	General Fund						
		2018		2017			
<u>ASSETS</u>							
Cash Prepaid expenses	\$	360,807 1,416	\$	301,413 1,220			
Total assets	<u>\$</u>	362,223	\$	302,633			
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE							
Liabilities							
Payroll tax liabilities	\$	2,541	\$	2,591			
Total liabilities		2,541		2,591			
Fund balances							
Nonspendable		1,416		1,220			
Unassigned		358,266		298,822			
Total fund balances		359,682		300,042			
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$	362,223	\$	302,633			

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEETS TO THE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

	 2018	 2017
Total fund balances - governmental funds	\$ 359,682	\$ 300,042
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:		
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.		
Fixed assets	71,182	71,182
Less: accumulated depreciation	 (16,783)	 (11,148)
	 54,399	 60,034
Total net position - governmental activities	\$ 414,081	\$ 360,076

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

	General			
			ınd	
		2018		2017
REVENUES:				
License Renewals	\$	133,800	\$	132,791
Examination Fees	Ψ	7,225	Ψ	9,000
CCCA Application Fees		2,700		4,450
Disciplinary		5,250		6,000
Membership Lists & Labels				1,900
Interest Income		2,000		•
		259		76
Miscellaneous		14		65
Total Revenue		151,248		154,282
EXPENDITURES:				
Attorney General		10,332		10,792
Audit		-		2,500
Conference Calls		435		565
Copy Machine Contract		909		850
Credit Card Fees		2,978		-
Dues		1,247		1,070
Insurance		1,144		1,144
Investigations		19		-
Law/Rule Changes		-		284
License Refund		-		600
Meeting Expenses		406		879
Miscellaneous Expenses		3		37
National Meeting Expenses		7,371		10,001
Office Equipment Expense		987		19,057
Office Supplies		1,532		3,369
Payroll Tax		2,887		2,949
Peer Review		2,981		11,668
Per Diem		9,750		13,500
Salary		35,796		33,415
Special Meeting Expenses		2,246		2,846
State Meeting Expenses		5,602		5,607
Telephone		1,555		1,612
Website Fees		3,178		3,375
Workman's Compensation		250		250
·		•		
Total Expenditures		91,608		126,370
Net Change in Fund Balance		59,640		27,912
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR		300,042		272,130
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR	\$	359,682	\$	300,042

See Notes to the Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

	 2018	 2017
Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds	\$ 59,640	\$ 27,912
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:		
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.		
Capital outlays	-	18,243
Depreciation expense	 (5,635)	 (3,612)
Net	 (5,635)	 14,631
Change in net position - governmental activities	\$ 54,005	\$ 42,543

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners, located in Grafton, North Dakota, was organized as a governmental organization. The Board's purpose is to serve as a licensing and regulatory board for licensed chiropractors and certified chiropractic clinical assistants practicing within the State of North Dakota. The Board accomplishes their purpose by licensing chiropractors and certified chiropractic clinical assistants, enforcing the state's chiropractic practice act, and responding to consumer complaints.

Reporting Entity

The Board, in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities which benefit the Board should be included within its financial reporting entity. The criteria include, but are not limited to, whether the Board exercises oversight responsibility on financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters, scope of public service, and special financing relationships. The Board has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria and, therefore, no other agency has been included as a component unit in the Board's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The Board's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Board are included in the statement of net position.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements display information about the Board as a whole. These statements include all the financial activities of the Board.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of the Board at year-end.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the Board's governmental activities. The statement identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or drawing from the general revenues of the Board. Direct expenses are expenses that are specifically associated with a service, program or department. The direct expenses are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges to recipients for goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the Board.

Fund Financial Statements

The governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance reports on the sources and uses of current financial resources.

The Board's governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The Board considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of its fiscal year. Expenditures are generally recorded as the related fund liability is incurred.

The current financial resources measurement focus differs from the manner that the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Due to the difference, the Board's financial statements include reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for government funds.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Typically, aggregated information for the remaining nonmajor governmental funds is reported in a single column in the fund financial statements; currently, however, the Board's financial statements consist of only one general fund, which is considered a major fund.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are utilized to account for most of the Board's governmental functions. The reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which the obligation will be paid. Fund balance represents the difference between the governmental fund assets and liabilities. The Board's major governmental funds consist of the following:

General Fund

This fund is the general operating fund of the Board. It accounts for all financial resources except those requiring to be accounted for in another fund. Currently, the Board accounts for all of its activities in the general fund.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Budget

The Board follows the procedures established by North Dakota law for the budgetary process. The budget may be amended with board approval.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Board considers demand deposits, certificates of deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are capitalized at cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are recorded in the Governmental-wide financial statements, but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of three to fifteen years.

Net Position/Fund Balance

The difference between assets and liabilities is "Net Position" on the government wide financial statements and "Fund Balance" on the governmental fund financial statements.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance represents a portion of fund balance that includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance represents a portion of fund balance that reflects constraints placed on the use of resources (other than nonspendable items) that are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority which is the Board through a resolution.

Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific purposes, but neither restricted nor committed. The assigned amounts are determined by the Board.

Unassigned fund balance represents residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents fund balance not assigned to other funds and not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it would be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

The first priority is to utilizing the restricted before unrestricted fund balance when both are available. Committed funds will be considered spent first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classification could be used like assigned or unassigned.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances, which represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services, have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 CASH AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Custodial credit risk is risk associated with the failure of a depository financial institution to recover its deposits or collateralized securities that are in the possession of outside parties. The Board does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk for deposits.

The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners maintains cash on deposit at various financial institutions. The amounts on deposit were insured by the FDIC up to \$250,000 per financial institution. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board had \$295,812 and \$179,771, respectively, of deposits that were exposed to custodial credit risk. These deposits were backed by the full faith and credit of the State of North Dakota.

State statute requires the market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Interest Rate Risk

The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

North Dakota laws restrict allowable investments for public funds in order to safeguard the principle on investments. North Dakota law authorizes political subdivisions to invest surplus funds in:

- 1. Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an obligation insured to guarantee by, the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities or organizations created by an act of Congress.
- 2. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

- 3. Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the state.
- 4. Obligation of the state.

NOTE 3 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was as follows:

	Balance 12/31/2017 Additions		Disposals	Balance 12/31/2018	
Governmental Activities					
Furniture, Computers and Database	\$ 71,182	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 71,182	
Accumulated Depreciation	(11,148)	(5,635)		(16,783)	
Net Capital Assets	\$ 60,034	\$ (5,635)	\$ -	\$ 54,399	
	Balance 12/31/2016	Additions	Disposals	Balance 12/31/2017	
Governmental Activities					
Furniture, Computers and Database	\$ 52,939	\$ 18,243	\$ -	\$ 71,182	
Accumulated Depreciation	(7,536)	(3,612)		(11,148)	
Net Capital Assets	\$ 45,403	\$ 14,631	\$ -	\$ 60,034	

NOTE 4 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Management believes the current coverage is adequate. The errors and omissions insurance is provided through the State of North Dakota Risk Management Fund.

NOTE 5 NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. It also establishes disclosure of information about the nature of a government's AROs, the methods and assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible capital assets. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

GASB Statement No. 84, *Fiduciary Activities*, provides guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, improves the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 90, *Majority Equity Interests*, provides guidance for reporting when a government has majority equity interest in legally separate organizations. An equity interest is explicit and measurable if the government has a present or future claim to the net resources of the entity and the method for measuring the government's share of the entity's net resources is determinable. If government's holding of that equity interest meets the definition of an investment, as defined by GASB No. 72, the equity interest should be reported as an investment and measured using the equity method and not as a component unit of the government. If a government's holding of a majority interest in a legally separate organization does not meet the definition of an investment, the holding of the majority equity interest results in the government being financially accountable for the organization and therefore, the government should report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

the legally separate organization as a component unit. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.

Management has not yet determined what effect these statements will have on the Board's financial statements.

NOTE 6 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No significant events occurred subsequent to the Board's year end. Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 19, 2019, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE – GENERAL FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

	Original & Final Budget				ariance n Budget
REVENUES:	' <u>-</u>				
License Renewals	\$	133,000	\$	133,800	\$ 800
Examination Fees		8,100		7,225	(875)
CCCA Application Fees		2,000		2,700	700
Disciplinary		-		5,250	5,250
Membership Lists & Labels		1,200		2,000	800
Interest Income		100		259	159
Miscellaneous		-		14	 14
Total Revenue		144,400		151,248	6,848
EXPENDITURES:					
Attorney General		10,000		10,332	(332)
Bank Service Charges		50		-	50
Conference Calls		600		435	165
Copy Machine Contract		850		909	(59)
Credit Card Fees		3,300		2,978	322
Dues		1,247		1,247	-
Insurance		800		1,144	(344)
Investigations		2,000		19	1,981
Law/Rule Changes		4,000		-	4,000
Meeting Expenses		900		406	494
Miscellaneous Expenses		150		3	147
National Meeting Expenses		10,000		7,371	2,629
Office Equipment Expense		5,000		987	4,013
Office Supplies		3,000		1,532	1,468
Payroll Tax		3,000		2,887	113
Peer Review		10,000		2,981	7,019
Per Diem		15,000		9,750	5,250
Salary		36,000		35,796	204
Special Meeting Expenses		3,000		2,246	754
State Meeting Expenses		6,000		5,602	398
Telephone		1,500		1,555	(55)
Website Fees		4,500		3,178	1,322
Workman's Compensation		250		250	
Total Expenditures		121,147		91,608	29,539
Net Change in Fund Balance		23,253		59,640	36,387
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR		300,042		300,042	
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR	\$	323,295	\$	359,682	\$ 36,387

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE – GENERAL FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

	Original & Final Budget		Actual		Variance with Budget	
REVENUES:						
License Renewals	\$	130,000	\$	132,791	\$	2,791
Examination Fees		7,500		9,000		1,500
CCCA Application Fees		-		4,450		4,450
Disciplinary		-		6,000		6,000
Membership Lists & Labels		1,000		1,900		900
Interest Income		25		76		51
Miscellaneous				65		65
Total Revenue		138,525		154,282		15,757
EXPENDITURES:						
Attorney General		10,000		10,792		(792)
Audit		2,500		2,500		-
Bank Service Charges		50		-		50
Conference Calls		400		565		(165)
Copy Machine Contract		850		850		-
Dues		1,220		1,070		150
Insurance		675		1,144		(469)
Investigations		2,000		-		2,000
Law/Rule Changes		4,000		284		3,716
License Refund		- -		600		(600)
Meeting Expenses		800		879		(79)
Miscellaneous Expenses		200		37		163 [°]
National Meeting Expenses		9,500		10,001		(501)
Office Equipment Expense		10,000		19,057		(9,057)
Office Supplies		3,000		3,369		(369)
Payroll Tax		3,000		2,949		` 51 [′]
Peer Review		10,000		11,668		(1,668)
Per Diem		15,000		13,500		1,500
Salary		31,950		33,415		(1,465)
Special Meeting Expenses		4,000		2,846		1,154
State Meeting Expenses		5,500		5,607		(107)
Telephone		1,800		1,612		188
Website Fees		2,500		3,375		(875)
Workman's Compensation		160		250		(90)
Total Expenditures		119,105		126,370		(7,265)
Net Change in Fund Balance		19,420		27,912		8,492
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR		272,130		272,130		
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR	\$	291,550	\$	300,042	\$	8,492

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 BUDGETARY DATA

Budgets are prepared for the Board funds on the same basis and using the same accounting practices as are used to account and prepare financial reports for the funds. Budgets presented in this report for comparison to actual amounts are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The budget is adopted through the passage of a resolution. Administration can authorize the transfer of budgeted amounts within any fund. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing Board.

Total expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by \$7,265 in the year ended December 31, 2017.

BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners Grafton, North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 19, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material

weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2018-001 and 2018-002, that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' Response to Findings

The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BRADY, MARTZ AND ASSOCIATES, P.C. GRAND FORKS, NORTH DAKOTA

August 19, 2019

Forady Martz

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Control Deficiency 2018-001

Criteria:

Generally, a system of internal control has the proper separation of duties between authorization, custody, record keeping, and reconciliation.

Condition:

There is not a system in place for accounting duties to be properly segregated between authorization, custody, record keeping, and reconciliation.

Cause:

The North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners has one employee, the executive director, responsible for all accounting and administrative functions involved.

Effect:

The lack of segregation of duties could adversely affect the Board's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, and report financial data reliably or prevent or detect noncompliance on a timely basis.

Recommendation:

The controls should be reviewed periodically and consideration given to improving the segregation of duties. Compensating controls over the underlying financial information may be obtained through oversight by management and the board.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:

Due to the size of the entity it is not feasible to obtain proper separation of duties. This risk is mitigated in part due to oversight provided by the Board.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Control Deficiency 2018-002

Criteria:

An appropriate system of internal control requires the Board to determine that financial statements are properly stated in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This requires the Board's personnel to maintain knowledge of current accounting principles and required financial statement disclosures.

Condition:

The Board's personnel prepare periodic financial information for internal use that meets the needs of management and the Board. However, the Board does not have internal resources to prepare full-disclosure financial statements for external reporting.

Cause:

The Board's internal controls have not been designed to address the specific training needs that are required of its personnel to obtain and maintain knowledge of current accounting principles and required financial statement disclosures.

Effect:

An appropriate system of internal controls is not present to make a determination that financial statements and the related disclosures are fairly stated in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. However, the Board is aware of the deficiency and addresses it by reviewing and approving the completed statements prior to distribution to the end users.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Board reviews its current training system to determine if it is cost effective for the Board to obtain this knowledge internally. As a compensating control, the Board should establish an internal control policy to document the annual review of the financial statements and schedules and to review a financial statement disclosure checklist.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:

Due to the financial, efficiency, and time constraints, it has been determined by the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners' management that it is in the best interest of the North Dakota State Board of Chiropractic Examiners and all interested parties to have the footnotes to the financial statements prepared by the auditing firm at the time of the audit.